
SEE REVERSE SIDE FOR RULES FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS AND  
DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 

Individuals with disabilities needing auxiliary aid(s) may request assistance by contacting the City Clerk at 
1301 81st Avenue NE, Spring Lake Park, MN  55432. Ph.763-784-6491 at least 48 hours in advance. 

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR AGENDA 
MONDAY, APRIL 01, 2024 

ABLE PARK BUILDING, 8200 ABLE STREET NE at 7:00 PM 
 

1.     CALL TO ORDER 
2.     ROLL CALL 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
4.     ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO AGENDA  
5.     DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 
6.     CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approval of Minutes - March 18, 2024 City Council Work Session 
B. Mayor's Proclamation - Administrative Professionals Day - April 24, 2024 
C. Request for Contractor's Payment #2 - City Hall Renovation/Expansion Project - $340,152.25 
D. Public Right of Way Application - Comcast Cable 
E. Public Right of Way Application - Comcast Cable 
F. Public Right of Way Application - Comcast Cable 
G. Contractor's Licenses 
H. Sign Permits 

7.     PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A. Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 857 81st Avenue NE 

8.     DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
A. Public Works Report 
B. Code Enforcement Report 

9.     ORDINANCES AND/OR RESOLUTIONS 
A. Ordinance 493, Amending SLPC 16.64.040, Appendix D: Schedule of Permitted Uses by 

District 
B. Resolution 2024-29, Authorizing Summary Publication of Ordinance 493, An Ordinance 

Amending SLPC 16.64.040, Appendix D: Schedule of Permitted Uses by District 
C. Resolution 2024-30, Approving Conditional Use Permit for an Auto Repair/Transportation 

Comapny at 970 County Hwy 10 NE 
10.     NEW BUSINESS 

A. Approval of Quality Assurance Testing Proposal - 2024 Street Improvement Project 
B. July 5, 2024 City Hall Closure 

11.   OTHER 
A. Correspondence 

12.   REPORTS 



A. Attorney Report 
B. Engineer Report 
C. Administrator Report 

13.   ADJOURN 
               
RULES FOR DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
 
DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR 

 Discussion from the floor is limited to three minutes per person. Longer presentations must be 
scheduled through the Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer’s office. 

 

 Individuals wishing to be heard must sign in with their name and address. Meetings are video 
recorded so individuals must approach the podium and speak clearly into the microphone. 

 

 Council action or discussion should not be expected during “Discussion from the Floor.” 
Council may direct staff to research the matter further or take the matter under advisement 
for action at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
The purpose of a public hearing is to allow the City Council to receive citizen input on a proposed 
project. This is not a time to debate the issue. 
 
The following format will be used to conduct the hearing: 
 

 The presenter will have a maximum of 10 minutes to explain the project as proposed. 

 Councilmembers will have the opportunity to ask questions or comment on the proposal. 
 

 Citizens will then have an opportunity to ask questions and/or comment on the project. Those 
wishing the comment are asked to limit their comments to 3 minutes. 

In cases where there is a spokesperson representing a group wishing to have their collective opinions 
voiced, the spokesperson should identify the audience group he/she is representing and may have a 
maximum of 10 minutes to express the views of the group. 
 

 People wishing to comment are asked to keep their comments succinct and specific. 
 

 Following public input, Councilmembers will have a second opportunity to ask questions of the 
presenter and/or citizens. 

 

 After everyone wishing to address the subject of the hearing has done so, the Mayor will close 
the public hearing. 

 

 The City Council may choose to take official action on the proposal or defer action until the 
next regularly scheduled Council meeting. No further public input will be received at that time. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park City Council 
Work Session was held on March 18, 2024 at the Able Park Building, 8200 Able Street NE, Spring Lake Park, 
at 5:30 PM. 
 
1.     CALL TO ORDER 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Councilmember Ken Wendling 
Councilmember Barbara Goodboe-Bisschoff 
Councilmember Lisa Dircks 
Councilmember April Moran 
Mayor Nelson 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Administrator Daniel Buchholtz 
 
GUESTS 
Karen Skepper, Anoka County HRA 
 
2.     DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

A. Anoka County Housing Study Presentation 
 

Karen Skepper, Anoka County Director of Community and Government Relations, 
presented the findings of the Anoka County Housing Study. She reported that the study 
highlighted the county's robust growth over the last decade, persistent labor shortages, a 
tight rental market, and a dramatic increase in home prices. She stated the study projected 
strong demand for housing through 2030, with an estimated need for over 18,000 new 
housing units. She presented recommendations for the City of Spring Lake Park, noting that 
the Spring Lake Park market could support 44 single family and 54 multi-family owner-
occupied units, 261 rental units and 338 senior housing units between 2023 and 2030.  She 
noted that with the City being fully developed, the majority of this growth would come 
through redevelopment. 

 
Councilmembers asked questions which lead to discussions about different types of 
housing, such as workforce and affordable housing; the impacts of the recent National 
Association of Realtors settlement governing real estate commissions; and new housing 
trends. Councilmembers raised concerns regarding dramatic increases in rent in the City’s 
affordable housing stock and the potential need for more affordable and subsidized 
housing units. Ms. Skepper concluded the item by leading a discussion on ways to 
encourage housing developments, including through public-private partnerships and 
utilizing newly available affordable housing funding. 

 
  



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 March 18, 2024 
 

B. Discussion of Allina Service Reductions at Mercy Hospital – Unity Campus 
 

Administrator Buchholtz reported that the City has learned about planned service 
reductions at Mercy Hospital – Unity Campus.  He stated that the service changes included 
moving all intensive care units and surgeries to Mercy Hospital in Coon Rapids, with Unity 
Campus focusing on addiction and mental health services.  He noted that Mayor Nelson 
sent a letter expressing the City’s concerns about the planned service reduction was sent to 
the President of Mercy Hospital.  Buchholtz stated that he and Mayor Nelson would be 
meeting with Mercy Hospital President Michael Johnston on Tuesday, March 19 to express 
the City’s concerns. 
 
Councilmembers expressed concerns about the future of hospital services at Mercy 
Hospital-Unity Campus.  Councilmembers requested that Administrator Buchholtz and 
Mayor Nelson advocate for continued investment and services at the Unity Campus. 

 
3.     REPORT 

A. Council Reports – No reports. 
 
B. Administrator Report – no report. 
 

4.     ADJOURN 
 
Mayor Nelson declared the meeting adjourned at 6:35pm. 
 
 
   

 Robert Nelson, Mayor 
 
Attest:   

  

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 
 



 

MAYOR'S PROCLAMATION 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROFESSIONALS DAY 

APRIL 24, 2024 

 

 WHEREAS, administrative professionals, including administrative assistants, office 

assistants, receptionists, billing clerks, finance specialists, deputy clerks and other administrative 

support staff, make up one of the largest segments of the labor force in America; and 

 

 WHEREAS, administrative professionals play an essential role in coordinating the office 

operations of businesses, government agencies, educational institutions and other organizations; and 

 

  WHEREAS, the work of administrative professionals today requires advanced knowledge 

 and expertise in communications, computer software, office technology, project management, 

 organization, customer service and other vital office management responsibilities; and 

 

      WHEREAS, Administrative Professionals Day is observed annually in workplaces around  

  the world to recognize the important contributions of administrative staff, and 

 

 WHEREAS, we recognize the importance and contributions of highly skilled administrative 

professionals to the success of office operations. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert Nelson, Mayor of the City of Spring Lake Park, do hereby 

proclaim April 24, 2024 as  

 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROFESSIONALS DAY 

 

in the City of Spring Lake Park and do hereby recognize and appreciate these administrative 

professionals and their valuable contributions in the workplace and support their continued 

professional growth. 

 

 Dated this 1st day of April, two thousand twenty-four. 

 

 

             

       Robert Nelson, Mayor 

 

 

       ATTEST: 

 

             

       Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Clerk



 



  Transmittal 

Stantec Architecture Inc. 
733 Marquette Avenue Suite 1000, Minneapolis MN  55402-2309 
Phone: (612) 712-2000  

 

pb \\us0291-ppfss01\shared_projects\193806049\communications\correspondence\buchholtz_bpp^payapp2 trn_20240325.docx 

To: Dan Buchholtz From: Bruce Paulson 

Company: City of Spring Lake Park ☐ 

☑ 

☑ 

☐ 

For Your Information 
For Your Approval 
For Your Review 
As Requested 

Address: 1301 81st Avenue NE 
Spring Lake Park, MN 55432 

Phone: (763) 792-7211 

Date: March 25, 2024  

File: 193806049 

Delivery: Email 

 

Reference: Spring Lake Park City Hall Renovation/Expansion Application and Certificate for 
Payment 

Attachment: 

Copies Doc Date Pages Description 

1 3/31/2023 12 Application and Certificate for Payment No. 2 

    

 

Hi Dan, 
Please have the attached copy signed and then it can be scanned and emailed to Heather Clay 
at heather.clay@constructionresults.com and to me. Thank you. 

Respectfully yours, 

Stantec Architecture Inc. 

Bruce P. Paulson   
Senior Project Manager/Architect 
Phone: (612) 712-2108 
Cell: (651) 492-9089 
Bruce.Paulson@stantec.com 

c. File 

mailto:heather.clay@constructionresults.com


Project:     Date: March 25, 2024

For Period:                      Request No 2

Contractor:  

CONTRACTOR'S REQUEST FOR PAYMENT
SPRING LAKE PARK CITY HALL RENOVATION/EXPANSION PROJECT

CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK
SPRING LAKE PARK, MINNESOTA

STANTEC FILE NO. 19386049

SUMMARY
1 Original Contract Amount $ 5,955,690.00
2 Change Order - Addition $ 0.00
3 Change Order - Deduction $ 0.00
4 Revised Contract Amount $ 5,955,690.00
5 Value Completed to Date $ 869,360.00
6 Material on Hand $ 0.00
7 Amount Earned $ 869,360.00
8 Less Retainage 5% $ 43,468.00
9 Subtotal $ 825,892.00
10 Less Amount Paid Previously $ 485,739.75
11 Liquidated damages - $ 0.00
12 AMOUNT DUE THIS REQUEST FOR PAYMENT NO. 2 $ 340,152.25

Recommended for Approval by:
STANTEC ARCHITECTURE INC.

See attached for signature

Approved by Contractor: Approved by Owner:

See attached for signature

Specified Contract Completion Date: Date:
June 27, 2025

Spring Lake Park City Hall Renovation/Expansion

3/1/2024 to 3/31/2024

Construction Results Corp., 5465 Hwy 169 North, Plymouth, MN 55442

 

CONSTRUCTION RESULTS CORPORATION CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK

 193806049 REQ1.xlsm



M
ar

ch
 2

5,
 2

02
4



























































City of Spring Lake Park  

RESOLUTION NO. 24- 

RESLOLUTION APPROVING RENTAL LICENSE REVOCATION FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 857 

81ST Ave NE, PURSUANT TO SECTION 12.16.140 OF THE CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK CODE  

WHEREAS, Bay Street Homes LLC (Hereinafter “License Holder”) is the legal owner of the real property 

at 857 81st Ave NE Spring Lake Park MN, 55432; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to City Code, 12.16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park written notice setting forth 

the causes and reasons for the proposed council action contained herein and notice of a public hearing 

to be held on at 7:00 pm on April 1, 2024 was given to the license holder on March 15, 2024. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring Lake Park that, in 

accordance with the foregoing, and all ordinances and regulations of the City of Spring Lake Park, the 

City Council adopts the following. 

Findings of Fact 

1. That on or about January 16, 2024 Code Enforcement staff attempted to complete an initial 

rental housing inspection at the property of 857 81st Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. 

The property failed its rental inspection, Property management failed to notify tenants and also 

failed to appear for the rental inspection.  

2. That on or about March 3, 2024 Code Enforcement Staff Attempted to complete a follow up 

inspection at the property of 857 81st Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property 

failed its rental inspection, Property management failed to notify tenants and also failed to 

appear for the rental inspection.  

3. That on or about March 11, 2024 Code Enforcement Staff completed a follow up inspection at 

the property of 857 81st Ave NE in the City of Spring Lake Park MN. The property failed its rental 

inspection due to multiple housing code violations along with municipal code violations.  

4. That on or about March 15, 2024 the property owner Bay Street Homes LLC and all tenants were 

notified of a public hearing  

5. That based upon said records of the Code Enforcement, the following conditions and violations 

of the City Property Maintenance Code were found to exist, to-wit: 

a. Failure of rental housing inspection on January 16, 2024. 

b. Failure of rental housing inspection on March 3, 2024. 

c. Failure of rental housing inspection on March 11, 2024. 

6. That all parties, including the license holder and any occupants or tenants, have been given the 

appropriate notice of this hearing according to the provisions of the City Code, Chapter 12 

Article 16.140 of the City of Spring Lake Park.  

 

 

 

 



Order of Council 

1. The rental license belonging to the license holder described herein and identified as Bay Street 

Homes LLC is hereby revoked;  

2. The City will post for the purpose of preventing occupancy a copy of this order on the buildings 

covered by the license held by license Holder; 

3. All tenants shall remove themselves from the premises within 45 days from the first day of 

posting of this Order revoking the license as held by license Holder.  

 

The foregoing resolution as moved for adoption by Councilmember. 

 

Upon roll call, the following voted aye: 

 

And the following voted nay: 

 

Where the Mayor declared said resolution duly passed and adopted this the 1st day of  

April, 2024. 

 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

     Robert Nelson, Mayor  

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator  

 



 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Nelson and Members of the City Council  

Cc:  Dan Buchholtz, City Administrator 

From:  George Linngren, Public Works Director 

Date:  3/28/2024 

Subject:  March 2024 Public Works Report 

The month of March work activities. 

 We set up for the elections on March 4 and took down the equipment on March 6. It worked 

out very smoothly with the help of Wanda and Haley. Along with having it at the church. My 

crew deserves a big thank you for all the work they did to put up and take down. They are the 

best. 

 Zahl was contracted to dig up the old fuel oil tank that was in the footprint of the addition to city 

hall. They are a licensed fuel contractor that was able to haul away the contaminated soil and 

dispose of it properly. 

 I met with 3 contractors for the excavation of the Garfield / Hayes street pond. They will be 

sending quotes for the work we need to do there. They are Sunram, Jacon and Alderink. 

 Brett, Travis and myself attended the Minnesota Shade Tree short course on March 12 & 13. 

 We had training on the new software the city is using and it seems to be pretty easy to use once 

the issues are fixed. Much better than the old system. 

 We finally ad winter all at once so we came in a few times from march 22 to March 26 to plow 

streets and sidewalks and salt. The wet heavy snow coming off the plow on Monday, March 25 

caused damage to 25-30, approximately, mail boxes or mail box posts. As per the snow policy, 

the homeowners are responsible for repairing the issue but I helped fix some of the issues if I 

was able to. 

 The sewer lining project should be wrapping up with the completion of the last 4 lines this week 

and next. The areas that were dug up will be repaired by the contractor when the road projects 

in town and being done and will be paid for by the contractor. 

 Helping out where needed as the city hall project is in full swing and taking care of the issues as 

they come up. 

1. I attended 2 council meetings and our monthly supervisors meeting. 

2. I attended the Shade Tree short course at Bethel college campus. 

3. Attended the weekly construction meetings. 











  City of Spring Lake Park 
Code Enforcement Division 

  1301 Eighty First Avenue Northeast 

Spring Lake Park, Minnesota 55432 

(763) 783-6491   Fax: (763) 792-7257 

 
 

REPORT 
 

 

TO:  Spring Lake Park City Council 
 

FROM: Jeff Baker, Code Enforcement Director 
 

RE:  Code Enforcement Monthly Report for March 2024 
 

DATE: March 27, 2024 

 

 

The Spring Lake Park Code Enforcement department is the authority having jurisdiction for all 

building, mechanical, plumbing, fire, rental, property, nuisance, and zoning codes within Spring 

Lake Park. 

 

In March, a total of 15 building, 1 Certificate of Occupancy, 1 Fire Alarm, 1 Fire Suppression, 6 

mechanical, 4 plumbing, 3 sign and 1 zoning for a total of 32 permits issued compared to a total 

of 30 in 2023.  Code Enforcement conducted 112 inspections in the month of March including 

14 rental, 22 fire, 44 Building and 32 nuisance inspections. 

 

12 Administrative Offense tickets were issued. 

 

I was on vacation the week of March 11th. A big thank you to Building Official Nick Henly with 

the City of Mounds View for covering any Inspection that came up that week.  

 

Construction Update: 

1301 81st Ave – City Hall Renovation – I completed the first of many inspections. The footing 

framing inspection passed and they have now been poured. Just in time for some snow to fly. I 

have done multiple large plan reviews for our City hall fire suppression and alarm systems. 

 

1625 County Highway 10 – Formerly known as Blue Sun Soda has changed owners. The 

company is now Grandpa Joes. The owner has 16 stores around the country. The SLP location is 

remaining similar to the previous store. 

 

In March of 2024, I also attended the following appointments: 
 

 City Council meetings March 4th. 

 Department head meeting March 5th. 

 Planning Commission meeting March 25th. 

 City Hall Renovation Meeting every Tuesday morning. 

 

 

This concludes the Code Enforcement Department monthly report for March 2024.   

 



 
Memorandum 
To:  Mayor Nelson and Members of the City Council 

From: Daniel R. Buchholtz, ICMA-CM, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

Date: January 29, 2024 

Subject: Ordinance Amending SLPC 16.64.040, Schedule of Permitted Uses by District 
 
The City Council directed staff to update the “Schedule of Permitted Uses by District” for clarity and to 
encourage a mix of businesses that will enhance the City’s tax base and provide the goods and services 
residents desire.  The ordinance outlines revisions across various zoning districts, including residential, 
commercial, and light industrial zones, with a detailed schedule of permitted, conditional, interim, and 
accessory uses within these districts. 
 
Key highlights include: 

 Residential 
o Adjustments to the categories of permitted uses in residential districts to remove cemetery 

and professional offices and studios as conditional uses in the R1, R-2 and R-3 district. 
o Limitation of square footage of places of worship in residential areas to ensure that the 

place of worship fits in scale with the surrounding residential neighborhood. 
o Adding home based businesses as a permitted use, so long as they comply with SLPC 

16.36.010 
 Commercial 

o Clarified the types of uses throughout the code to minimize the level of staff 
interpretation needed when evaluating zoning requests. 

o Added uses such as electric vehicle charging stations, and essential service structures. 
o Establish that vehicle related businesses (drive-through lanes, etc) generally require a 

conditional use permit due to the traffic oriented nature of their development. 
 Industrial 

o Updating various types of uses in the I-1 zoning district, including machine shops, data 
centers, construction trades, research and development, among others. 

 
The ordinance aims to enhance the clarity, efficiency, and responsiveness of the zoning code to current 
and future development needs, promoting a balanced approach to land use that respects community 
values and economic growth. 
 
The Planning Commission reviewed the proposed ordinance at its February 26 meeting and 
recommended approval. 
 
The effective date of the ordinance is upon approval and publication according to law, marking a 
significant step towards refined zoning practices in Spring Lake Park. 
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 



Page 1

SPRING LAKE PARK
ORDINANCE 493

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SLPC 16.64.040, APPENDIX D: SCHEDULE OF
PERMITTED USES BY DISTRICT

NOW THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Council of the Spring Lake Park, in the
State of Minnesota, as follows:

SECTION 1: AMENDMENT “16.64.040 Appendix D: Schedule Of
Permitted Uses By District” of the Spring Lake Park Municipal Code is hereby amended as
follows:

A M E N D M E N T

16.64.040 Appendix D: Schedule Of Permitted Uses By District

A. Residential districts. The following uses are allowed in the various residential districts
either as permitted, accessory, conditional, or interim uses.

Use Details
District

R-1 R-2 R-3

Boarding or rental of rooms
Note: family members, as
defined in this title, may enter
into rental agreements

C C C

Cemetery C C C

Places of worship
Includes sacred communities
as regulated by SLPC
16.36.010

C C C

Dwellings Cluster developments - - C

Dwellings Medium density dwellings - P P

Dwellings Mobile homes - - C

Dwellings
Multiple-family dwellings
over six units per building

- C

Dwellings
Single-family detached
dwellings

P P P

Dwellings Two-family dwellings C P P

Essential public service and



Page 2

utility structures or uses  P P P

Fallout shelter  A A A

Family daycare
Within the residence of the
daycare provider

P P P

Home occupations As regulated by SLPC
16.36.010

P P P

Living quarters of persons
employed on the premises

 - - A

Off-street parking lots or
garages

   A

Parks and recreation
Private owned or operated
areas

C C C

Parks and recreation
Private recreation facilities for
the enjoyment of residents
and guests only

A A A

Parks and recreation
Public owned or operated
areas

P P P

Places of worship

Under 30,000 square feet;
includes sacred communities
as regulated by SLPC
16.36.010

C C C

Private garage  C C C

Professional offices and
studios

 C C C

Schools Day schools or nurseries C C C

Schools Public or private C C C

Small wireless facility in
right-of-way, as regulated in
SLPC 12.48

 C P P

Swimming pool  A A A

Tool house, shed, and
similar storage

 A A A

Uses customarily incident
to the permitted, conditional
or interim uses allowed in
the district

 A A A



Page 3

Other public or semi- public
facilities  C C C

Key: A = accessory uses; P = permitted uses; C = conditional uses; I = interim uses

B. Commercial districts. Conditional uses in this paragrpah shall be governed by the
criteria enumerated in SLPC 16.56, relating to conditional uses. Interim uses in this
paragraph shall be governed by criteria enumerated in SLPC 16.56, relating to
interim uses.

Use
District

C-1 C-2 C-3

Accessory uses customarily incident to the permitted,
conditional or interim uses allowed in the district

A A A

Adult daycare facilities C C C

Assembly uses, including auditoriums, places of worship
and philanthropic uses

C C -

Auto and marine; sales, leasing and rental (See SLPC
11.20.040 Paragraph F,4 re: licensing and SLPC 16.36.010
Paragraph A)

- I -

Auto and marine; service, parts, and repair, excluding wash C C -

Boarding and lodging houses C - -

Boarding school C - -

Brewer taprooms, brew pubs and cocktail rooms P P -

Bus stations or terminal P P P

Business, commercial, or trade schools P P P

Clinics, medical offices P P P

Commercial recreation, indoor such as bowling alleys,
billiard halls, miniature golf, and the like

C C -

Commercial recreation, outdoor C C -

Construction and/or trades sales and service shops; with
storage of equipment, supplies or materials inside a
building

P P -

Convalescent, assisted living and nursing homes - - C

Child daycare facilities (see SLPC 16.36.010 Paragraph D) C C C

Drive-in restaurants, or similar uses providing goods and
C C -



Page 4

services to patrons in autos

Dry cleaning and laundry establishments with no more
than four employees for cleaning or pressing P P -

Dry cleaning and laundry collection stations, and self-
service

P P -

Electric vehicle charging station A A A

Equipment rental, no outside display -P P -C

Equipment rental, outside display - C -

Essential service structures, including, but not limited to,
buildings such as telephone stations, booster or presure
stations, elevated tanks, lift stations, and electric power
substations

A A A

Event centers, night clubs, taverns C C -

Farmer's market I I I

Financial institutions, with no drive-up window P P C

Financial institutions, with drive-up window C C C

Greenhouses, Garden centers and nurseries - PC -

Greenhouses, seasonal I I -

Health care services; including medical, dental,
optometrist, chiropractic and counseling clinics, for the
diagnosis, treatment and care of patients

P P P

Hospitals - C -

Laboratories; medical, dental P P P

Medical equipment rental - P C

Mortuaries, funeral homes, monument sales C P -

Motels, hotels, or apartment hotels C C -

Motor fuel stations C C

Municipal and government buildings and structures,
including police, fire, library, public works garages

C C C

Nursing homes, memory care or retirement homes - - C

Non-alcoholic beverage bottling establishment not larger
than 3,000 square feet accompanied by a retail shop or
store not less than 50% of the size of the bottling
establishment, where bottled product is sold

P P C



Page 5

Off-sale liquor stores P P -

Off-street parking and loading as regulated in SLPC
16.40.010 A A A

Offices (administrative, executive, professional,
governmental, medical, research); without merchandising
services

P P P

Offices (as above); with merchandising services C P C

Outdoor seating or dining C C -

Pawnshops, secondhand goods stores (excluding motor
vehicles) as regulated SLPC 16.36.010 Paragraph G (see.
SLPC 11.16, Pawnshops or SLPC 11.20, Secondhand
Goods Dealers, for licensing

C C -

Personal services; and repair establishments such as barber
shops,and beauty/hair salons shops, massage therapy, shoe
repair, tailoring and alterations, and the like

P P P

Pet related care; including dog daycare, boarding,
veterinary clinics and grooming, with outdoor use

C C -

Pet and animal shops, clinics, taxidermistsPet related care
including dog daycare, boarding, veterinary clinics and
grooming, with no outdoor use

P P -

Places or worship; religious uses C C -

Plumbing and heating showrooms and shops - P -

Printing, publishing, and related distribution agencies C C -

Private clubs and lodges C C -

Public, parochial and private schools, trade and business
schools, colleges and universities

C C -

Research and development; including laboratories
(medical, software, communications, scientific, etc)

P P P

Restaurants, excluding a drive-up window night clubs, and
the like

P P -

Restaurants, including a drive-up window C C -

Restaurants; with or without on-sale liquor P P -

Retail usesshops and stores (excluding autos, boats, and the
like) such as apparel, appliances, beverage, book, carpet,
drugs, floral, furniture, grocer, hardware, jewelry, paint,
tobacco, sporting goods

P P C



Page 6

Sacred communities, as regulated by SLPC 16.36.010 C C

Schools and studios: artistic, music, photo, decorating,
dancing, health, and the like

C C -

Sexually oriented businesses as defined in SLPC 11.48 and
regulated in SLPC 16.36.010 Paragraph H

C - -

Signs as regulated by SLPC 16 A A A

Small wireless facility in right-of-way, as regulated in
SLPC 12.48

P P P

Studios; artistic, music, photo, decorating, dancing, health,
and the like

C C -

Tattoo and body piercing P P -

Theaters (indoor only) P P -

Vending machines for ice, milk, and the like P P -

Key: A= accessory uses; P = permitted uses; C = conditional uses; I = interim uses

C. Light industrial district. Conditional uses in this paragraph shall be governed by the
criteria enumerated in SLPC 16.56.030 Paragraph E, relating to conditional uses.
Interim uses in this paragraph shall be governed by criteria enumerated in SLPC
16.58, relating to interim uses.

Uses in I-1 Category

Automobile repair C

Automobile sales; indoor (Refer to SLPC 11.20.040 Paragraph
F,4 and SLPC 16.36.010 Paragraph A

I

Bottling establishments C

Brewing taprooms and cocktail rooms P

Building material sales and storage P

Camera and photographic supplies manufacturing P

Cartage, andexpress, freight terminals C

Cartography, technical drawing or drafting and book binding P

Cleaning and maintenance services; carpet, laundry, furniture,
upholstery, appliances, and the like

C

Commercial dog kennel; with or without dwelling for night C



Page 7

watchperson

Constructure trades P

Data center P

Dry cleaning and laundry establishments P

Electrical service shops P

Engraving, printing, and publishing P

Governmental and public utility buildings and structures P

Jewelry manufacture P

Light manufacturing P

Medical, dental, and optical laboratoriesMachine shop P

Off-street parking and loading as regulated by SLPC 16.40.010 A

Offices, office buildings P

Packaging/processing food products C

Parcel delivery services P

Pharmaceutical/medical device manufacturing P

Product distribution center P

Research and development; including laboratories P

Printing, publishing P

Retail and service establishments essential to the operation of an
I-1 district and providing goods and services primarily for the
use of persons employed in the district

C

Signs as regulated by SLPC Ch.16 this title A

Small wireless facility in right-of-way, as regulated in SLPC
12.48

P

Storage, enclosed rental C

Vehicle repair and maintenance, including vehicle wrapping,
detailing and window treatment

C

Storage, wWarehousing, or wholesaling or distribution business P

Woodworking shop P

Any manufacturing, production, processing, cleaning, storage,
servicing, repair, and testing of materials, goods, or products

C



Page 8

AYE NAY ABSENT ABSTAIN

Councilmember Wendling

Councilmember Goodboe-Bisschoff

Councilmember Dircks

Councilmember Moran

Mayor Nelson

similar to the permitted uses (P) listed above which conform
with the performance standards

All uses customarily incident to the permitted (P), conditional
(C) or interim (I) uses above

A

Key: A= accessory uses; P = permitted uses; C = conditional uses; I = interim uses

SECTION 2: EFFECTIVE DATE This Ordinance shall be in full force and
effect upon approval and publication according to law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE SPRING LAKE PARK COUNCIL
_______________________________.

    

    

    

    

    

Presiding O fficer  Attest

Robert Nelson, Mayor, Spring Lake
Park

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator,
Clerk/Treasurer, Spring Lake Park



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-29 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUMMARY PUBLICATION OF ORDINANCE 493, 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SLPC 16.64.040, APPENDIX D: SCHEDULE OF 

PERMITTED USES BY DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, as authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Section 412.191, subd. 4, the City 

Council has determined that publication of the title and summary of Ordinance 493 will clearly 

inform the public of the intent and effect of the Ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, a printed copy of the Ordinance is available for inspection during regular 

office hours in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park, Minnesota that the following summary of Ordinance No. 493 is approved for 

publication: 

 

“On April 1, 2024, the Spring Lake Park City Council approved Ordinance No. 493, 

entitled ‘An Ordinance Amending SLPC 16.64.040, Appendix D: Schedule of Permitted 

Uses by District.’ 

 

The following is a summary of Ordinance No. 493, a copy of which is available in its 

entirety for review during regular office hours at the City of Spring Lake Park, 1301 81st 

Avenue NE, Spring Lake Park, MN, or for review on the City’s website, www.slpmn.org. 

 

The Ordinance amends City Code to update the schedule of permitted uses in the 

residential, commercial and industrial zoning district. 

 

The Ordinance takes effect upon publication in the City’s newspaper of record.” 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Councilmember . 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:   

 

And the following voted against the same:  

 

 

 

  

http://www.slpmn.org/


Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 1st day of April, 2024.  

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Robert Nelson, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator 

 



CITY OF SPRING LAKE PARK 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-29 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SUMMARY PUBLICATION OF ORDINANCE 493, 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SLPC 16.64.040, APPENDIX D: SCHEDULE OF 

PERMITTED USES BY DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, as authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Section 412.191, subd. 4, the City 

Council has determined that publication of the title and summary of Ordinance 493 will clearly 

inform the public of the intent and effect of the Ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, a printed copy of the Ordinance is available for inspection during regular 

office hours in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park, Minnesota that the following summary of Ordinance No. 493 is approved for 

publication: 

 

“On April 1, 2024, the Spring Lake Park City Council approved Ordinance No. 493, 

entitled ‘An Ordinance Amending SLPC 16.64.040, Appendix D: Schedule of Permitted 

Uses by District.’ 

 

The following is a summary of Ordinance No. 493, a copy of which is available in its 

entirety for review during regular office hours at the City of Spring Lake Park, 1301 81st 

Avenue NE, Spring Lake Park, MN, or for review on the City’s website, www.slpmn.org. 

 

The Ordinance amends City Code to update the schedule of permitted uses in the 

residential, commercial and industrial zoning district. 

 

The Ordinance takes effect upon publication in the City’s newspaper of record.” 

 

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Councilmember . 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:   

 

And the following voted against the same:  

 

 

 

  

http://www.slpmn.org/


Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 1st day of April, 2024.  

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Robert Nelson, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Daniel R. Buchholtz, City Administrator 

 



 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor Nelson and City Council Members  

Cc:  Daniel Buchholtz, City Administrator  

From:  Wanda Brown, Deputy City Clerk  

Date:  March 28, 2024 

Subject:  Conditional Use Permit (CUPC) Application for 970 County Highway 10 NE  

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on March 25 to consider a CUP request by 
Lake City Transportation, to operate an auto repair/transportation company at 970 County 
Highway 10 NE. 
 
The City Planner’s report to the Commission (included in the packet) provides a great overview of 
the application. 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the Conditional Use Permit, subject to the 
conditions outlined in the enclosed Resolution and recommended to the Commission by the City 
Planner. 
 
If you have any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me at 763-784-6491. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 24-30 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR AN AUTO 

REPAIR/TRANSPORTATION COMPANY AT 970 COUNTY HIGHWAY 10 NE 

 

 

WHEREAS, Lake City Transportation has made application for a conditional use permit 

to allow for a Type III Transportation Company, with auto repair as a use, at 970 County Highway 

10 NE; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the property is zoned C-2, Neighborhood & Service Center Commercial, and 

is legally described as follows: 

 
Lot 2, Block 2 Park Manor Addition, subject to easement of record; and  

 

WHEREAS, mailed and published notice of a public hearing to consider the proposed 

conditional use permit was given; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing to consider the proposed conditional use permit was held by 

the Planning Commission on March 25, 2024; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission has recommended approval of the conditional use 

permit amendment, subject to conditions, after making the following findings of fact: 

 

1) Schweiger Rentals LLC owns the property at 970 County Highway 10. 

2) The property is zoned C-2 Neighborhood & Service Center Commercial. Auto service 

and repair is a conditional use in the C-2 district. 

3) Lake City Transportation has applied for a conditional use permit to operate their 

transport business including vehicle service and repair on site. 

4) The use as conditioned with this approval meets the criteria for approving a Conditional 

Use Permit in Section 16.56.030(E)(1) of the City Code. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Spring 

Lake Park, Minnesota that the City Council hereby approves an amendment to the conditional use 

permit at 970 County Road 10 NE to permit an auto repair business/transportation company, 

subject to the following conditions: 

 

1) All work on vehicles will be conducted within the enclosed building. 

2) No storage of tires, vehicles, vehicle parts or other materials is permitted outside the 

building. 

3) All vehicles parked on site will be operable and street worthy. 

4) The number of vehicles parked and stored on site will not exceed the available on-site 

parking spaces. 

5) A fence no more than 6 feet in height meeting City standards will be installed around the 

perimeter of the site to be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. 

6) The existing trees on site will be maintained or replaced at the owner’s expense. 



7) Hours of operation will be from 6:00 am to 7:00 pm; with vehicle maintenance activities 

only done between 7:00 am to 7:00 pm with doors closed. 

8) Operations on site will at all times follow the performance standards in Section 16.28.010 

of the Spring Lake Park Zoning Code for noise, odor, fumes, light and other impacts. 

9) Minimum of six parking spaces for employees. 

10) Stripping of the parking lot is required. 

 

The foregoing Resolution was moved for adoption by Councilmember . 

 

Upon Vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:   

And the following voted against the same:  

 

  

Whereon the Mayor declared said Resolution duly passed and adopted the 1st day of April, 2024. 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

___________________________________ 

Robert Nelson, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Daniel R. Buchholtz, Administrator, Clerk/Treasurer 

 

 



























OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS 
 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, the regularly scheduled meeting of the Spring Lake Park Planning 
Commission was held on March 25, 2024, at the City Hall, at 7:00 PM. 
 
1.     CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Hansen called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
2.     ROLL CALL 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Chair Hans Hansen 
Commissioner Rick Cobbs 
Commissioner Brad Delfs 
Commissioner Sharon Weighous 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT 
Commissioner Kelsey Hollihan 
Commissioner Eric Julien 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Building Official Jeff Baker, Deputy City Clerk Wanda Brown, Planner Lauren Wahlburg 
 
VISITORS 
Keith Schweiger   913 Manor Drive NE   Spring Lake Park MN 
 
3.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
4.     APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. Approval of Minutes – February 26, 2024 Meeting 
 
 Motion made by Commissioner Delfs, seconded by Commissioner Cobbs, to approve the 

minutes from February 26, 2024 Planning Commission meeting. 
 
 Voting Aye:  Commissioner Weighous, Commissioner Delfs, Commissioner Cobbs, 

Chairperson Hansen.  Motion carried. 
 

5.     PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. Public Hearing – Conditional Use Permit for Lake City Transportation Auto Service, 970 
County Highway 10 NE, to Operate a Transportation Base Location 

 
City Planner Wahlburg provided an overview of the conditional use permit request from 
Lake City Transportation.  She stated that the applicant is seeking to operate a transport 
business from the site at 970 County Highway 10.  Ms. Wahlburg stated that there will be 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 2 March 25, 2024 
 

some service and repair of vehicles on site in the building.  She stated that auto service is a 
conditional use in the C-2 zoning district. 
 
Planner Wahlburg stated that she has reviewed the application and is recommending 
approval of the application, with the following conditions: 
 

 All work on vehicles will be conducted within the enclosed building. 

 No storage of tires, vehicles, vehicle parts or other materials is permitted outside the 
building. 

 All vehicles parked on site will be operable and street worthy. 

 The number of vehicles parked and stored on site will not exceed the available on-
site parking spaces. 

 A fence no more than 6 feet in height meeting City standards will be installed around 
the perimeter of the site to be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. 

 The existing trees on site will be maintained or replaced at the owner’s expense. 

 Movement of vehicles or other noisy activity will be limited to a reasonable level 
between the hours of 10 pm and 7 am so as not to disturb the peace and quiet of 
the neighborhood. 

 Operations on site will at all times follow the performance standards in Section 
16.28.010 of the Spring Lake Park Zoning Code for noise, odor, fumes, light and 
other impacts.  

 
Planner Wahlburg stated that the applicant was not present but the owner of the property 
was in attendance to answer questions.   

 
Keith Schweiger, owner of 970 County Highway 10, stated that the building, has four 30-foot 
garage doors. He stated that the building is 45 feet deep. Mr. Schweiger stated that the 
applicant will be using small vans and passenger buses.  He stated that there is no activity 
conducted at night. Mr. Schweiger said that the building is large enough to do auto work on 
several vehicles inside at the same time.  
 
Chairperson Hansen opened the public hearing at 7:22 PM, seeing no one in attendance to 
speak he closed the public hearing at 7:23 PM. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Weighous, seconded by Commissioner Cobb to recommend 
approval of the conditional use permit for Lake City Transportation Auto Service, 970 County 
Highway 10 NE, to Operate a Transportation Base Location, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

 All work on vehicles will be conducted within the enclosed building. 

 No storage of tires, vehicles, vehicle parts or other materials is permitted outside the 
building. 

 All vehicles parked on site will be operable and street worthy. 

 The number of vehicles parked and stored on site will not exceed the available on-
site parking spaces. 



OFFICIAL PROCEEDINGS PAGE 3 March 25, 2024 
 

 A fence no more than 6 feet in height meeting City standards will be installed around 
the perimeter of the site to be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer. 

 The existing trees on site will be maintained or replaced at the owner’s expense. 

 Hours of operation will be from 6:00 am to 7:00 pm; with vehicle maintenance 
activities only done between 7:00 am to 7:00 pm with doors closed. 

 Operations on site will at all times follow the performance standards in Section 
16.28.010 of the Spring Lake Park Zoning Code for noise, odor, fumes, light and 
other impacts.  

 Minimum of six parking spaces for employees. 

 Stripping of the parking lot is required. 
 

Voting Aye:  Commissioner Weighous, Commissioner Delfs, Commissioner Cobbs, Chairperson 
Hansen.  Motion carried.  

 
6.     OTHER 
 None 

 
7.     ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by Commissioner Delfs, seconded by Commissioner Cobbs to adjourn. 
 

Voting Aye:  Commissioner Weighous, Commissioner Delfs, Commissioner Cobbs, Chairperson 
Hansen.  Motion carried. 

 
Meeting adjourned at 7:25 PM. 

 



 

 
 

 

Memo 

To: Dan Buchholtz, Administrator 

City of Spring Lake Park  

From: Phil Gravel 

City Engineer 

Project/File:  2024 Street Project Date: March 25, 2024 

 

Reference: Materials Testing - 2024 Street Improvements Project 

 

Materials testing is required as part of the construction phase for the Sanburnol, Elm, and 83rd 
Avenue street project.  Materials testing includes compaction testing on utility trenches.  It also 
includes testing the aggregate base, concrete, and bituminous used on the project.   

Attached is a Proposal from American Engineering Testing (AET) to complete the required 
materials testing on the project.  The testing will be completed in accordance with MnDOT State 
Aid requirements.  The estimated cost for the materials testing is $20,870 to $26,471.   

We have reviewed the Proposal from AET.  We recommend that the city accept the proposal 
and execute the Agreement with AET.   

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or require any additional information on 
this matter.  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

550 Cleveland Avenue North | Saint Paul, MN 55114 
Phone (651) 659-9001 | (800) 972-6364 | Fax (651) 659-1379 | teamAET.com | AA/EEO 

This document shall not be reproduced, except in full, without written approval from American Engineering Testing, Inc. 

March 15, 2024 
 
City of Spring Lake Park 
c/o Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. 
1301 81st Avenue Northeast 
Spring Lake Park, MN 55432 
 
Attn: Phil Grave, PE – City Engineer 
 Phil.Gravel@stantec.com 
  
RE: Quality Assurance Testing Proposal  
 2024 85th Ave/Sanburnol Dr, Elm Dr, & 83rd Ave Improvements 
 S.A.P. 106-115-007, 106-129-002, 183-103-001, 183-104-001, 183-107-102 
 Spring Lake Park, Minnesota  
 AET Proposal No. P-0031840  
 
Dear Mr. Gravel: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide a proposal to perform testing services on the referenced 
project. This proposal has been prepared in response to your email request on March 12, 2024, 
and describes our understanding of the project, our anticipated scope of services, our unit rates, 
and an estimated total fee to perform these services. 

PROJECT INFORMATION 
The City of Spring Lake Park (the City) will be performing a street and utility improvements 
project during the 2024 construction season. Construction is anticipated to begin in spring, 2024, 
and be substantially completed by September 1, 2024. The project area will include University 
Avenue Service Road, Sanburnol Drive/8th Avenue, Elm Drive, and 83rd Avenue. The project will 
be funded with a mix of state aid and municipal funds. 
 
Plans and Specifications were prepared by Stantec. We understand Construction Inspection and 
Contract Management of the project will be performed by Stantec. The project includes full depth 
reclamation, mill and overlay, grading, aggregate base, storm sewer replacements curb and 
gutter, bituminous pavement, concrete sidewalk, and pedestrian ramps. 

GEOTECHNICAL INFORMATION 
A geotechnical exploration and analysis was performed for this project by AET. The results were 
presented in our Report of Geotechnical Exploration and Review, dated July 28, 2023 (AET 
Project No. P-0022957). In the report, the site soil profile is generalized as fill underlain by coarse 



Quality Assurance Testing Proposal  
85th Ave/Sanburnol Dr, Elm Dr, & 83rd Ave Imp., Spring Lake Park, MN 
March 15, 2024 
AET Proposal No. P-0031840 
 
 

Page 2 of 6 

alluvium. Reference should be made to that report for more details regarding site conditions and 
recommendations. 

PROJECT APPROACH 
During the construction improvements, AET will provide experienced MnDOT certified 
Engineering Technicians to perform sampling and material testing services in accordance with 
the 2023 State Aid for Local Transportation Schedule of Materials Control (2023 SALT SMC) 
and project specific testing requirements referenced in the Project Manual. For this project, Ryan 
Schaefer will be AET’s contact. He can be reached at 651-603-6639 (office). AET requires a 
minimum of 24 hours’ notice of the need for Services. 
 
We understand that the City will contract with MnDOT Metro Inspections for bituminous and 
concrete plant monitoring.  

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Based on our review of the available plans and our experience with Stantec on similar projects, 
our anticipated scope of services is outlined below. These services will be provided on an on-
call basis coordinated through authorized Stantec field personnel.  

Soils Sampling and Testing 
Our estimate of the sampling and testing to be performed on the grading and base items is based 
on the requirements of MnDOT’s “Specified Density Method” and in accordance with the 2023 
SALT SMC. AET will perform MnDOT Relative Density testing (Proctor) as well as in-place 
density and moisture testing on the utility trench backfill. 
 
The MnDOT Dynamic Cone Penetrometer will be used to test compaction on the Class 5 
Aggregate Base sections of the project following the MnDOT Penetration Index procedures in 
accordance with the 2023 SALT SMC. 
 
AET will perform the sampling of the soils and Class 5 Aggregate Base materials and transport 
the samples to our St. Paul, Minnesota laboratory. Stantec personnel will update AET on the 
schedule of material placement, material sources (including changes in source), and changes in 
quantities. 

Full Depth Reclamation (FDR) 
AET will perform dynamic cone penetrometer (DCP) testing and moisture content testing of the 
full depth reclamation material along with up to 3 gradations in accordance with the 2023 SALT 



Quality Assurance Testing Proposal  
85th Ave/Sanburnol Dr, Elm Dr, & 83rd Ave Imp., Spring Lake Park, MN 
March 15, 2024 
AET Proposal No. P-0031840 
 
 

Page 3 of 6 

SMC. We have not included gradations of this material in our proposal but will at your request. 
The frequency of these gradations for an FDR project are at the discretion of the Engineer. We 
assume the City’s Inspector will perform depth checks of the FDR material. 

Bituminous Pavement Sampling and Testing 
As bituminous paving is being completed, AET personnel will pick up companion samples 
provided by the contractor, during each day of paving, and transport the samples to our St. Paul, 
Minnesota laboratory. Samples will be tested in our laboratory for MnDOT Gyratory Mix 
Properties as follows: 
 

• Gyratory Density (AASHTO T 312) MnDOT Modified 
• Rice Specific Gravity (ASTM D2041) 
• Asphalt Extraction and Aggregate Gradation (ASTM D2172 Method E-11) MnDOT 

Modified C137 and C117 
• Fine Aggregate Angularity (AASHTO T 304, Method A, MnDOT 1206.5) 
• Coarse Aggregate Angularity, One Face (ASTM D5821) 

 
AET assumes that Stantec will utilize the MnDOT program to determine random core locations 
of bituminous based on information regarding tonnage (lot sizes) and pavement placement 
patterns. We also assume Stantec personnel will mark the core locations in the field. This 
proposal does not incorporate the time and cost to mark the core locations or to determine 
random core locations. These services can be provided at your request. Stantec will coordinate 
the removal of both the contractor and companion cores with the contractor. 
 
After the completion of the coring, AET will retrieve companion core samples from the project 
contractor for laboratory testing. This testing will include the following: 
 

• The thickness of each layer of the core sample 
• The density of each layer of the core sample 

Concrete Sampling and Testing 
During the placement of concrete, AET will perform field testing consisting of slump, air content, 
temperature of the plastic concrete, and casting of cylinders for compression testing. The 2023 
SALT SMC requires field testing for slump, air content, and temperature per every 100 cubic 
yards of each type of concrete placed each day. Compressive strength cylinders (1 set of 3 
cylinders) are required once per every 300 cubic yards of each type of concrete placed each 
day; the cylinders will be retrieved the following day for curing and testing in our laboratory. The 
3 cylinders are to be tested at 28-days. We are proposing to cast sets of 5 cylinders, with 



Quality Assurance Testing Proposal  
85th Ave/Sanburnol Dr, Elm Dr, & 83rd Ave Imp., Spring Lake Park, MN 
March 15, 2024 
AET Proposal No. P-0031840 
 
 

Page 4 of 6 

compressive strength testing as follows: 1 at 7 days, 3 at 28 days, and the 5th cylinder will be 
held in reserve for future testing if the 28-day strength requirement is not met. 
 
We have assumed Stantec personnel will be compiling the concrete batch tickets, certificates of 
compliance, and AET’s field test results of the plastic concrete, which we will provide each day 
we are on-site performing testing services. 

REPORTING 
AET staff will prepare reports for Stantec to review. These reports will include the results of our 
field and laboratory testing as performed per the 2023 SALT SMC and testing frequencies 
referenced in the project documents. AET will complete the Preliminary Grading and Base 
Report and the Final Grading and Base Report, once provided with final project quantities. Daily 
field reports will also be prepared and made available upon request.  

ESTIMATED FEES  
Our services will be provided on a unit cost basis according to the unit rates provided in the 
attached Materials Testing Estimate. Our invoices will be determined by multiplying the number 
of personnel hours or tests by their respective unit rates. The rates are from the annual fee 
schedule for 2024 projects.  
 
We have estimated a “minimum required estimate” for the project which estimates the tests 
needed to satisfy the requirements as defined in the 2023 SALT SMC and the project 
documents. The “likely needed estimate” is the cost that we anticipate will be required to 
complete the previously described testing services, based on our experience, and assumed 
scheduling of the project. Therefore, we propose a budget cost estimate using the “likely needed” 
estimate for the scope of services for the project as outlined in this proposal. Our “likely needed” 
estimated fee is $26,471.00. We refer you to the attached Materials Testing Estimate as 
reference to how we arrived at this estimated cost. 
 
We caution that this is only an estimated cost. Often, variations in the overall cost of the services 
occur due to reasons beyond our control, such as weather delays, changes in the contractor’s 
schedule, unforeseen conditions, or retesting. These variations will affect the actual invoice 
totals, either increasing or decreasing our total costs for the project from those estimated in this 
proposal. If more time or tests are required, additional fees may be needed to complete the 
project testing services. If less time or tests are needed, a cost savings will be realized. We will 
not, however, exceed the estimated total cost for the project without first obtaining your 
authorization. 



Quality Assurance Testing Proposal  
85th Ave/Sanburnol Dr, Elm Dr, & 83rd Ave Imp., Spring Lake Park, MN 
March 15, 2024 
AET Proposal No. P-0031840 
 
 

Page 5 of 6 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
All AET Services are provided subject to the Terms and Conditions set forth in the enclosed 
Construction Service Agreement—Terms and Conditions, which, upon acceptance of this 
proposal, are binding upon you as the Client requesting Services, and your successors, 
assignees, joint venturers, and third-party beneficiaries. Please be advised that additional 
insured status is granted only upon written acceptance of the proposal. 

ACCEPTANCE 
AET requests written acceptance of this proposal in the Proposal Acceptance box below, but the 
following actions shall constitute your acceptance of this proposal together with the Terms and 
Conditions: 1) issuing an authorizing purchase order for any of the Services described in this 
proposal, 2) authorizing AET’s presence on site, or 3) written or electronic notification for AET 
to proceed with any of the Services described in this proposal. Please indicate your acceptance 
of this proposal by signing below and returning a copy to us. When you accept this proposal, 
you represent that you are authorized to accept on behalf of the Client.  

GENERAL REMARKS 
AET appreciates the opportunity to provide this service for you and looks forward to working with 
you on this project. If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
American Engineering Testing 
 
 
 
 
Ryan S. Schaefer Jesse A. Mohler  
Geologist I/Project Manager Engineer II 
rschaefer@teamAET.com jmohler@teamAET.com 
612-618-8066 651-523-1276  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Quality Assurance Testing Proposal  
85th Ave/Sanburnol Dr, Elm Dr, & 83rd Ave Imp., Spring Lake Park, MN 
March 15, 2024 
AET Proposal No. P-0031840 
 
 

Page 6 of 6 

ACCEPTANCE AND AUTHORIZATION: AET Proposal No. P-0031840 

SIGNATURE:             
PRINTED NAME:             
COMPANY:             
ADDRESS:              
PHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL:             
DATE:             
 
INVOICING INFORMATION (Provide Company AP Department Information, if present.) 

AP CONTACT NAME:             
BILLING/MAILING ADDRESS:             
AP PHONE NUMBER AND INVOICE EMAIL:             
P.O. NO./ PROJECT NO.:              
 
Attachments: Materials Testing Estimate 
 Construction Service Agreement – Terms and Conditions 
 Certificate of Insurance 
 W9 
 



M
in

im
um

Li
ke

ly
M

in
im

um
Li

ke
ly

1
4

18
4.

00
18

4.
00

73
6.

00

20
25

42
.0

0
84

0.
00

10
50

.0
0

1
1

53
.0

0
53

.0
0

53
.0

0

1
1

13
5.

00
13

5.
00

13
5.

00
0

0
63

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0
0

53
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00

4
4

13
5.

00
54

0.
00

54
0.

00
8

8
63

.0
0

50
4.

00
50

4.
00

10
12

63
.0

0
63

0.
00

75
6.

00
4

4
53

.0
0

21
2.

00
21

2.
00

21
4.

00
0.

00
0.

00
18

4.
00

0.
00

0.
00

61
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
46

8.
00

0.
00

0.
00

28
9.

00
0.

00
0.

00

0
3

13
5.

00
0.

00
40

5.
00

5
8

63
.0

0
31

5.
00

50
4.

00
1

1
53

.0
0

53
.0

0
53

.0
0

3
7

62
5.

00
18

75
.0

0
43

75
.0

0
24

28
56

.0
0

13
44

.0
0

15
68

.0
0

15
30

42
.0

0
63

0.
00

12
60

.0
0

3
6

10
0.

00
30

0.
00

60
0.

00
30

74
Su

bt
ot

al
 =

7,
61

5.
00

12
,7

51
.0

0
N

ot
es

:

U
ni

t
R

at
e 

($
)

M
in

im
um

 Q
ua

nt
ity

Li
ke

ly
 Q

ua
nt

ity
M

in
im

um
 C

os
t

M
ile

1.
30

1,
05

0
1,

05
0

1,
36

5.
00

H
ou

r
11

5.
00

74
74

8,
51

0.
00

H
ou

r
19

0.
00

8
8

1,
52

0.
00

H
ou

r
19

0.
00

8
10

1,
52

0.
00

H
ou

r
85

.0
0

4
5

34
0.

00
Su

bt
ot

al
 =

13
,2

55
.0

0

M
in

im
um

Li
ke

ly
Es

tim
at

e 
pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y:
  R

ya
n 

Sc
ha

ef
er

20
,8

70
.0

0
26

,4
71

.0
0

42
5.

00

R
el

at
iv

e 
M

oi
st

ur
e 

(1
/1

,0
00

 C
Y,

 1
0 

m
ax

)

1,
52

0.
00

1,
90

0.
00

M
ile

ag
e,

 P
er

so
na

l A
ut

om
ob

ile
/T

ru
ck

1,
36

5.
00

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
 II

8,
51

0.
00

En
gi

ne
er

 II
, F

in
al

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
um

m
ar

y 
R

ep
or

t

Pe
ne

tra
tio

n 
In

de
x 

D
C

P (1
/3

,0
00

 S
Y)

G
ra

da
tio

n 
(E

ng
in

ee
r's

 d
is

cr
et

io
n)

Pr
oj

ec
t A

dm
in

is
tra

to
r

En
gi

ne
er

 II
, P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t

St
or

m
 S

ew
er

82
7

To
ta

l C
os

t E
st

im
at

e 
= 

C
on

cr
et

e 
C

om
pr

es
si

ve
 S

tre
ng

th
, C

ur
in

g,
 &

 H
an

dl
in

g 
4x

8 
C

yl
in

de
rs

 (i
nc

lu
de

s 
m

ol
d)

 (5
 c

yl
s/

30
0 

C
Y)

5
Fu

ll 
D

ep
th

 R
ec

la
m

at
io

n 
(F

D
R

)

Bi
tu

m
in

ou
s 

- S
P 

W
E/

N
W

TO
N

5,
41

0

C
Y

12
,9

88
2 7

14

13
,7

20
.0

0

Q
ua

nt
ity

U
ni

ts

Ti
m

e 
an

d 
M

ile
ag

e

M
at

er
ia

l
H

ou
rs

Tr
ip

s

R
el

at
iv

e 
M

oi
st

ur
e 

(1
/2

0,
00

0 
C

Y)

C
Y

22
2

1
2

3,
55

9
6

15

LF

M
at

er
ia

ls
 T

es
tin

g 
Es

tim
at

e 
fo

r 2
02

4 
85

th
 A

ve
/S

an
bu

rn
ol

 D
r, 

El
m

 D
r, 

&
 8

3r
d 

Av
e 

Im
p.

 ‒
 2

02
3 

SA
LT

 S
M

C

Li
ke

ly
 C

os
t

Ag
en

cy
 T

es
tin

g 
&

 F
re

qu
en

cy

Pl
as

tic
 C

on
cr

et
e 

Te
st

in
g 

(1
 s

et
 o

f t
es

ts
/1

00
 C

Y)
 - 

In
cl

ud
ed

 
in

 h
ou

rly
 ra

te
 s

ee
 b

el
ow

SA
P 

10
6-

11
5-

00
7,

 1
06

-1
29

-0
02

, 1
83

-1
03

-0
01

, 1
83

-1
04

-0
01

, 1
83

-1
07

-1
02

; S
pr

in
g 

La
ke

 P
ar

k,
 M

in
ne

so
ta

C
os

t (
$)

C
os

t p
er

 
Te

st
 ($

)
Pr

oc
to

r (
1/

so
il 

ty
pe

)

M
nD

O
T 

G
yr

at
or

y 
M

ix
 P

ro
pe

rti
es

 (1
/d

ay
/m

ix
 ty

pe
)

C
on

cr
et

e 
sa

m
pl

e 
pi

ck
 u

p 
fro

m
 jo

b 
si

te

# 
of

 T
es

ts

8
20

Ag
gr

eg
at

e 
Ba

se
 C

la
ss

 5
±4

,6
65

 L
F 

of
 tr

ai
l

C
Y

Se
le

ct
 G

ra
nu

la
r E

m
ba

nk
m

en
t, 

N
ot

e 
1

Tr
en

ch
es

, S
pe

ci
fie

d 
D

en
si

ty
 N

uc
le

ar
 G

au
ge

 (1
/5

00
'/2

' 
fil

l/s
tru

ct
ur

e)
R

el
at

iv
e 

M
oi

st
ur

e 
(1

/1
0,

00
0 

C
Y,

 1
0 

m
ax

)

G
ra

da
tio

n 
(1

/4
0,

00
0 

C
Y)

R
el

at
iv

e 
M

oi
st

ur
e 

(1
/1

0,
00

0 
C

Y,
 1

0 
m

ax
)

G
ra

da
tio

n 
(2

 p
er

 lo
t, 

1 
lo

t ≤
 2

,0
00

 C
Y)

W
al

ks
 a

nd
 T

ra
ils

, D
C

P (1
/5

00
 fe

et
)

R
oa

d,
 P

en
et

ra
tio

n 
In

de
x 

D
C

P (1
/5

00
 C

Y)

Pe
ne

tra
tio

n 
In

de
x 

D
C

P (1
/2

,0
00

 C
Y)

 

1.
 F

or
 g

ra
di

ng
 a

nd
 b

as
e 

m
at

er
ia

ls
, p

er
 th

e 
20

23
 S

AL
T 

SM
C

, l
es

s 
th

an
 5

00
 to

ns
 (2

50
 C

Y)
 m

ay
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
En

gi
ne

er
 w

ith
ou

t t
es

tin
g.

 
2.

 M
at

er
ia

l q
ua

nt
iti

es
 a

re
 e

st
im

at
ed

 b
as

ed
 u

po
n 

St
at

em
en

t o
f E

st
im

at
ed

 Q
ua

nt
iti

es
, c

on
ve

rs
io

ns
, a

nd
 p

la
ns

.
3.

 N
um

be
r o

f "
Li

ke
ly

" b
itu

m
in

ou
s 

sa
m

pl
es

, c
or

es
, a

nd
 tr

ip
s 

as
su

m
es

 7
 d

ay
s 

of
 p

av
in

g 
(5

00
 to

 8
00

 to
ns

 o
f b

itu
m

in
ou

s 
pe

r d
ay

). 
As

su
m

es
 te

st
in

g 
of

 a
ll 

co
m

pa
ni

on
 c

or
es

 a
nd

 n
o 

lo
ng

itu
di

na
l d

en
si

ty
 c

or
es

.
4.

 W
e 

ha
ve

 n
ot

 in
cl

ud
ed

 ti
m

e 
fo

r m
ar

ki
ng

 b
itu

m
in

ou
s 

co
re

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 o
r f

or
 d

et
er

m
in

in
g 

th
e 

ra
nd

om
 b

itu
m

in
ou

s 
co

re
 lo

ca
tio

ns
.

Pe
rc

en
t C

ru
sh

ed
 (1

/s
ou

rc
e,

 if
 re

qu
ire

d)
LA

R
 (1

/s
ou

rc
e,

 if
 re

qu
ire

d)
In

so
lu

bl
e 

R
es

id
ue

 (1
/s

ou
rc

e,
 if

 re
qu

ire
d)

Li
th

o 
Ex

am
 &

 S
ha

le
 F

lo
at

 T
es

t (
1/

so
ur

ce
, i

f r
eq

ui
re

d)
Bi

tu
m

en
 C

on
te

nt
 (E

ng
in

ee
r's

 d
is

cr
et

io
n)

C
om

pa
ni

on
 C

or
e 

D
en

si
ty

 &
 T

hi
ck

ne
ss

C
on

cr
et

e 
- S

id
ew

al
k,

 P
ed

es
tri

an
 R

am
ps

, C
ur

b 
& 

G
ut

te
r

C
Y

11
6

6
18

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 1



CONSTRUCTION SERVICE AGREEMENT - TERMS AND CONDITIONS Page 1 of 4 

 

 
ACS 403C (01/24)   AMERICAN ENGINEERING TESTING, INC. 

SECTION 1 - RESPONSIBILITIES  
1.1 – This Service Agreement – Terms and Conditions (“terms and conditions”) is applicable to all services ("Services") provided by American Engineering 
Testing, Inc. (AET). As used herein “Services” refer to the scope of Services described in the proposal submitted by AET to Client. The proposal, these 
terms and conditions and any appendices attached hereto shall comprise the agreement ("Agreement") between AET and Client for Services described in 
the proposal and are binding upon the Client, its successors, assignees, joint ventures and third-party beneficiaries.  AET requests written acceptance of 
the Agreement, but the following actions shall also constitute Client’s acceptance of the Agreement: 1) issuing an authorizing purchase order, task 
order, service order, or any other documentation for any of the Services, 2) authorizing AET’s presence on site, or 3) written or electronic notification 
for AET to proceed with any of the Services.  Issuance of a purchase order, task order or service order by Client which contains separate terms and 
conditions will not take precedence or modify the terms and conditions contained in this Service Agreement  AND THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF 
THIS SERVICE AGREEMENT AND ANY CORRESPONDING PROPOSAL ISSUED BY AET SHALL GOVERN UNLESS AUTHORIZED IN WRITING IN 
ADVANCE BY AET. 
1.2 - Prior to AET performing Services, Client will provide AET with all information that may affect the cost, progress, safety and performance of the 
Services. This includes, but is not limited to, information on proposed and existing construction, all pertinent sections of contracts between Client and 
their client and/or Owner which contain flow-down provisions to AET, if they are included, site safety plans or other documents which may control or 
affect AET's Services. If new information becomes available or changes are made during AET's Services, Client will provide such information to AET in a 
timely manner. Failure of Client to timely notify AET of changes to the project including, but not limited to, location, elevation, loading, or configuration 
of the structure or improvement will constitute a release of any liability of AET. Client will provide a representative for timely answers to project-related 
questions by AET.  
1.3 - AET observes and tests earthwork and other construction operations and materials, and may provide opinions, conclusions and recommendations 
regarding the same. However, AET’s Services do not relieve the contractors of their contractual responsibility to perform their work in accordance with 
approved plans, specifications and building code requirements.  
1.4 - AET personnel do not have authority to accept, reject, direct or otherwise approve the work of the contractor. AET cannot stop work or waive or 
alter the requirements of the project documents. Any authority given to AET by Client must be in writing prior to the start of Services.  
1.5 - AET does not perform construction management, general contracting or surveying services and our involvement with the project does not constitute 
any assumption of those responsibilities.  
1.6 - Services performed by AET often include sampling at specific locations. Client acknowledges the limitations inherent in sampling.  Variations in 
conditions occur between and beyond sampled/tested locations. The passage of time, natural occurrences and direct or indirect human activities at the 
site or distant from it may alter the actual conditions. Client assumes all risks associated with such variations.  
1.7 - AET is not responsible for interpretations or modifications of AET's recommendations by other persons.    
1.8 - Should change in conditions be alleged, Client agrees to notify AET before evidence of alleged change is no longer accessible for evaluation.  
1.9 - Test borings and/or cone penetration test soundings to a proper depth below foundation grade and the base of suitable bearing soils are 
recommended to explore the deeper unseen soil and ground water conditions. Judgments made by AET personnel regarding the suitability of materials 
and ground water conditions below the bottom of an excavation are limited if sufficiently deep test borings/soundings are not provided by the Client 
prior to our observations and judgments.  AET’s opinions, conclusions and recommendations are qualified to that extent.  
1.10 – Pricing in the proposal assumes use of these terms and conditions. AET reserves the right to amend pricing if Client requests modifications to the 
Agreement or use of Client’s alternate contract format. Any contract amendments made after Client has authorized the Services shall be applicable only 
to Services performed after the effective date of such amendment. The proposal and these terms and conditions, including terms of payment, shall apply 
to all Services performed prior to the effective date of such amendment.  
1.11 – The AET proposal accompanying these terms and conditions is valid for thirty (30) days after the proposal issuance date to the Client.  Any attempt 
to authorize Services after the expiration date is subject to AET’s right to revise the proposal as necessary.  
  
SECTION 2 – ON CALL SERVICES  
2.1 -  If AET’s Services are performed on an on-call basis at the direction of the Client or its authorized representatives, Client acknowledges the inherent 
limitations associated with performing engineering judgments and testing Services on an on-call basis, including without limitation, the inability to 
completely evaluate, document or judge work and conditions not directly observed or tested by AET. AET’s opinions, conclusions, and recommendations 
are qualified to the extent of those limitations.   
2.2 - Density tests of fill soils represent conditions only at the locations and elevations tested and do not necessarily represent conditions laterally, above 
or below.  AET can only provide judgments regarding the engineered fill system to adequately support the design construction loadings by monitoring the 
filling process on a continuous basis for consistency of soil type, moisture content, lift thickness, and compaction effort.   
2.3 – AET requires a minimum of 24 hours’ notice of the need for Services. AET will not be liable for claims, damages, or delays related to failure of Client 
to provide adequate advance notice to AET.  
  
SECTION 3 - SITE ACCESS, UNDERGROUND FACILITIES AND CONSTRUCTION STAKING  
3.1 - Client will furnish AET safe and legal site access.    
3.2 – With the exception of public utilities which AET will contact state “call before you dig” notification centers (e.g. Gopher State One call in Minnesota), 
Client will mark or cause to be marked the location of all other underground utilities and structures (Facilities) that service or are located on the site. AET 
shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy of all location information supplied by any source.  
3.3 – Client shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend AET from all claims, damages, losses, fines, penalties and expenses (including attorney’s fees) 
arising out of or related to the following: a) Facilities that are not shown or vary from the locations shown on any plans or drawings, b) Facilities that are 
not located by or vary from the locations marked by Client, governmental or quasi-governmental locator programs, or private utility locating services, or 
c) any other Facilities that are not disclosed or vary from locations provided by the Client. The obligation to defend AET shall be independent of the 
obligation to indemnify and hold harmless AET and shall be with independent counsel acceptable to AET. 
3.4 - The location and elevation of a proposed structure or facility shall be staked (with offsets) and controlled by surveying or GPS equipment by others. 
AET’s measurements are made in relation to that information. The reliability of any opinions, conclusions, and recommendations based on those 
measurements is strictly dependent on the accuracy of the staking or GPS information provided by others.  



CONSTRUCTION SERVICE AGREEMENT - TERMS AND CONDITIONS Page 2 of 4 

 

 
ACS 403C (01/24)   AMERICAN ENGINEERING TESTING, INC. 

3.5 - During construction, observations and testing Services are based on the positioning of the formwork by the contractor or its subcontractor. AET will 
not be responsible for any errors or damages resulting from improper location or positioning of the formwork.  
  
SECTION 4 - SAFETY  
4.1 - Client shall inform AET of any known or suspected hazardous materials or unsafe conditions at the site. Client or its authorized representative(s) is 
responsible for the safety of the jobsite. If, during the course of AET's Services, such materials or conditions are discovered, AET reserves the right to take 
measures to protect AET personnel and equipment or to immediately terminate Services. Client shall be responsible for payment of such additional 
protection costs.  
4.2 - AET shall only be responsible for safety of AET employees at the site; the safety of all others shall be Client's or other persons' responsibility.  
  
SECTION 5 - SAMPLES  
5.1 - Client shall inform AET of any known or suspected hazardous materials prior to submittal to AET. All samples obtained by or submitted to AET remain 
the property of the Client during and after the Services. Any known or suspected hazardous material samples will be returned to the Client at AET's 
discretion.  
5.2 - Non-hazardous samples will be held for thirty (30) days and then discarded unless, within thirty (30) days of the report date, the Client requests in 
writing that AET store or ship the samples. Storage and shipping costs shall be borne solely by Client.  
  
SECTION 6 - PROJECT RECORDS  
The original project records prepared by AET will remain the property of AET. AET shall retain these original records for a minimum of three years following 
submission of the report, during which period the project records can be made available to Client at AET's office at reasonable times.  
  
SECTION 7 - STANDARD OF CARE  
AET performs its Services consistent with the level of care and skill normally performed by other firms in the profession at the time of this service and in 
this geographic area, under similar budgetary constraints.   
  
SECTION 8 - INSURANCE  
AET maintains insurance with coverage and minimum limits shown below. AET will furnish certificates of insurance to Client upon request.    
8.1 –  
  

Workers’ Compensation  Statutory Limits   
Employer’s Liability  $100,000 each accident  

$500,000 disease policy limit  
$100,000 disease each employee  
  

Commercial General Liability  $1,000,000 each occurrence  
$1,000,000 aggregate   
  

Automobile Liability  $1,000,000 each accident  

Professional/Pollution Liability Insurance  $1,000,000 per claim  
$1,000,000 aggregate   

  
8.2 - Commercial General Liability insurance will include coverage for Products/Completed Operations extending one (1) year after completion  
of AET’s Services as outlined in our proposal, Property Damage, Personal Injury, and Contractual Liability coverage applicable to AET's indemnity  
obligations under this Agreement. 
8.3 - Automobile Liability insurance shall include coverage for all owned, hired and non-owned automobiles. 
8.4 - Professional/Pollution Liability Insurance is written on a claims-made basis and coverage will be maintained for one (1) year after 
completion of AET’s Services as outlined in our proposal.  Renewal policies during this period shall maintain the same retroactive date. 
8.5 - To the extent permitted by applicable state law, and upon Client’s signing of the proposal, which includes these Terms and Conditions, 
and return of the same to AET, or Client provided forms of acceptance as defined in Section 1.1; Client and Owner shall be named an 
“additional insured” on AET’s Commercial General Liability Policy (Form CG D4 14, which includes blanket coverage for the Additional Insured 
on a Primary and Non-Contributory basis).  Client and Owner shall also be named an "additional insured" on a Primary and Non-contributory 
basis on AET's Automobile Liability Policy (Form CA T4 74).  Any other endorsement, coverage or policy requirement may result in additional 
charges.  
8.6 - AET will maintain insurance coverage required by this Agreement at its sole expense, provided such insurance is reasonably available, with 
insurance carriers licensed to do business in the state in which the project is located and having a current A.M. Best rating of no less than A minus 
(A-). Such insurance shall provide for thirty (30) days prior written notice to Client for notice of cancellation or material limitations for the policy 
or ten (10) days' notice for non-payment of premium. 
8.7 - AET reserves the right to charge Client for AET’s costs for additional coverage requirements unknown on the date of the proposal, e.g., 
coverage limits or policy modification including waiver of subrogation, additional insured endorsements and other project specific requirements. 
 



CONSTRUCTION SERVICE AGREEMENT - TERMS AND CONDITIONS Page 3 of 4 

 

 
ACS 403C (01/24)   AMERICAN ENGINEERING TESTING, INC. 

SECTION 9 - DELAYS  
If delays to AET's Services are caused by Client or Owner, other parties, strikes, natural causes, pandemic, weather, or other items beyond AET's control, 
a reasonable time extension for performance of the Services shall be granted, and AET shall receive an equitable fee adjustment.  
  
SECTION 10 - PAYMENT, INTEREST AND BREACH  
10.1 - Invoices are due net thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of an undisputed invoice. Invoices will be paid without reductions for bond or 
retention. Client will inform AET of invoice questions or disagreements within fifteen (15) days of invoice date; unless so informed, invoices are deemed 
correct.  
10.2 – Invoices remaining unpaid for sixty (60) days shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement, permitting AET, in its sole discretion and without 
limiting any other legal or equitable remedies for such breach, to terminate performance of this Agreement and be relieved of any associated duties to 
the Client or other persons. Further, AET may withhold from Client data and reports in AET’s possession. If Client fails to cure such breach, all reports 
associated with the unpaid invoices shall immediately upon demand be returned to AET and Client may neither use nor rely upon such reports or the 
Services.  
10.3 – AET reserves the right to pursue any unpaid invoice utilizing available remedies at law. AET explicitly reserves its Mechanic Lien or Bond Claim rights 
for nonpayment of an undisputed invoice. Client is responsible for paying AET expenses and attorney fees related to collection of past due invoices.    
10.4 – AET reserves the right to charge a 2.5% fee on any payment made using a credit card or debit card. 
  
SECTION 11 - CHANGE ORDERS 
AET's proposal associated with this project may provide an estimated cost for the work. If the proposal amount is a time and material estimate, or if 
changes occur affecting the project scope, estimated quantities, project schedule or other unforeseen conditions, AET will communicate with Client and 
request a change order. However, nothing in this agreement shall be construed in any way as a waiver of payment by Client to AET for Services authorized 
under this agreement. Approval of a change order may be in writing, by electronic communication, or any directive for additional Services. 
 
SECTION 12 - MEDIATION  
12.1 - Except for enforcement of AET’s rights to payment for Services rendered or to assert and/or enforce its lien rights, including without limitation 
assertion and enforcement of mechanic’s lien rights and foreclosure of the same, Client and AET agree that any claim, dispute or other matter in question 
arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to arbitration or the institution of legal or equitable 
proceedings by either party; provided however that if either party fails to respond to a request for mediation within sixty (60) days, the party requesting 
mediation may without further notice, proceed to arbitration or the institution of legal or equitable proceedings.  
12.2 - Mediation shall be in accordance with the Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association. Request for mediation 
shall be in writing and the parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally and each party shall pay their own legal fees. The mediator 
shall be acceptable to both parties and shall have experience in commercial construction matters.  
  
SECTION 13 - LITIGATION REIMBURSEMENT  
Except for matters relating to non-payment of fees, which is governed by Section 10 hereof, payment of attorney’s fees and costs associated with lawsuits 
or arbitration of disputes between AET and Client, which are dismissed or are judged substantially in either party's favor, shall be paid by the non-prevailing 
party. Applicable costs include, but are not limited to, attorney and expert witness fees, court costs, and other direct costs.  
  
SECTION 14 - MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION  
14.1 - Subject to the limitations contained in Sections 14 and 17, AET agrees to indemnify Client from and against damages and costs to the extent caused 
by AET's negligent performance of the Services.  
14.2 - Client agrees to indemnify AET from and against damages and costs to the extent caused by the intentional acts or negligence of the Client, Owner, 
Client's contractors and subcontractors or other third parties.  
14.3 - If Client has an indemnity agreement with other persons or entities relating to the project for which AET’s Services are performed, the Client shall 
include AET as an Additional Insured.  
14.4 - AET's indemnification to the Client, including any indemnity required or implied by law, is limited solely to losses or damages caused by its failure 
to meet the standard of care and only to the extent of its negligence.  
 
SECTION 15 - NON-SOLICITATION   
Each party to this Agreement (a “Party”) agrees that it will not encourage, induce, or actively solicit any employee of the other party to leave their 
employment for any reason, provided that neither Party is precluded from (a) hiring any such employee who has been terminated by a Party or its 
subsidiaries prior to commencement of employment discussions between a Party and such employee, or (b) soliciting any such employee by means of a 
general advertisement or  through an employment agency that does not specifically pursue the employee, or (c) hiring employees or former employees 
of the other Party who contact the Party on its own accord.  This Non-Solicitation provision shall be effective and enforceable for six (6) months following 
termination of this Agreement. 
  
SECTION 16- MUTUAL WAIVER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES  
Except as specifically set forth herein and to the extent permitted by applicable law, Client and AET waive against each other, and each other’s officers, 
directors, members, subcontractor, agents, assigns, successors, partners, and employees any and all claims for or entitlement to special, incidental, indirect, 
punitive, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to the Services provided by AET under this Agreement.  This mutual 
waiver of consequential damages includes, but is not limited to, the following: loss of profits; loss of revenue; rental costs/expenses incurred; loss of income; 
loss of use of property, equipment, materials or services; loss of opportunity; loss of rent; loss of good will; loss of financing; loss of credit; diminution of value; 
loss of business and reputation; loss of management or employee productivity or the services of such persons; increased financing costs; cost of substitute 
facilities; cost of substitute goods/property/equipment; cost of substitute services; and/or cost of capital.  This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, 



CONSTRUCTION SERVICE AGREEMENT - TERMS AND CONDITIONS Page 4 of 4 

ACS 403C (01/24) AMERICAN ENGINEERING TESTING, INC. 

to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination of this Agreement in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement and related documents 
and shall survive any such termination.   

SECTION 17 - LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, the total aggregate liability of AET and its officers, directors, partners, employees, subcontractors, 
agents, and sub-consultants, to Client and/or Client’s employees, officers, directors, members, agents, assigns, successors, or partners, or anyone claiming 
through Client, for any and all injuries, damages, claims, losses, or expenses (including attorney’s fees and costs) arising out of, resulting from or in any 
way related to Services provided by AET from any cause or causes, including, but not limited to, its negligence, professional errors and omissions, strict 
liability, breach of contract, or breach of warranty shall not exceed the total compensation in excess of costs received by AET for Services or $50,000, 
whichever is less.  The limitation of liability set forth herein does not apply to claims arising solely out of or related to the willful or intentional acts of 
AET. 

SECTION 18 - POSTING OF NOTICES ON EMPLOYEE RIGHTS  
Effective June 21, 2010, prime contracts with a value of $100,000 or more and signed by federal contractors on projects with any agency of the United 
States government must comply with 29 CFR Part 471, which requires physical posting of a notice to employees of their rights under Federal labor laws. 
The required notice may be found at 29 Code of Federal Regulations Part 471, Appendix A to Subpart A. The regulation also has a "flow-down" requirement 
for subcontractors under the prime agreement for subcontracts with a value of $10,000 or more. AET requires strict compliance of its subcontractors 
working on federal contracts subject to this regulation. The regulation has specific requirements for location of posting and language(s) for the poster.  

SECTION 19 - TERMINATION  
After 7 days' written notice, either party may elect to terminate work for justifiable reasons. In this event, the Client shall pay AET for all Services 
performed, including demobilization and reporting costs to complete the Services.   

SECTION 20 - SEVERABILITY  
Any provisions of this Agreement later held to violate a law or regulation shall be deemed void, and all remaining provisions shall continue in force. 
However, Client and AET will in good faith attempt to replace an invalid or unenforceable provision with one that is valid and enforceable, and which 
comes as close as possible to expressing the intent of the original provision.  

SECTION 21 - GOVERNING LAW  
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the Laws of the State of Minnesota without regard to its conflicts of law provisions.  

SECTION 22 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT  
This Agreement, including these terms and conditions and attached proposal and appendices, is the entire agreement between AET and Client. Regardless 
of method of acceptance of this Agreement by the Client, this Agreement supersedes any written or oral agreements, including purchase/work orders or 
other Client agreements submitted to AET after the start of our Services. Any modifications to this Agreement must be mutually acceptable to both parties 
and accepted in writing. No considerations will be given to revisions to AET's terms and conditions or alternate contract format submitted by the Client 
as a condition for payment of AET's accrued Services. 







 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor and City Council Members  

Cc:  Daniel Buchholtz, City Administrator  

From:  Wanda Brown, Deputy City Clerk  

Date:  March 18, 2024 

Subject:  July 5, 2024 Closure 

With the 4th of July holiday on a Thursday this year, staff is requesting approval from the City Council 
to close City Hall on Friday, July 5. 
 
The City Council has previously authorized City Hall to be closed when a holiday falls on a Thursday, 
so long as staff used vacation or comp time to cover the absence. This has been done due to lack of 
traffic into City Hall and skeletal staffing levels.  
 
Staff is seeking direction on this issue. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact 

me at 763-784-6491. 

 



 
CORRESPONDENCE 

  



 











































































 

 

 
City of Spring Lake Park  

Engineer’s Project Status Report 
 

 

To: Council Members and Staff  Re: Status Report for 04.01.24 Meeting       
 

From:  Phil Gravel     File No.: R-18GEN  
 

 

Note:  Updated information is shown in italics.    
 

2024 MS4 Permit and SWPPP Update (193801776 Task 450).  Pond, structural BMP, and outfall 

inspections are due by July 31st.  Program analysis and annual training is due by December.  Annual Reports to 
the MPCA are generally due in June.  However, MPCA is not requiring a report in 2024.  Per 5-15-23 message: 
MPCA has put their requested review/audit of the city’s 2022 information on hold until further notice. 

 
2023-2024 Sewer Lining Project (193805871).  This project includes lining the remaining sanitary 

sewers in the city that have not been previously lined (approximately 35,710-feet). The Contractor is Visu-Sewer 

Inc with a low bid amount of $1,047,746.  Over 90-percent of the lining has been completed.  Work should 
be completed in April.  George Linngren is overseeing construction.                                       
 
City Hall Building (193806049).  Design Phase started in January 2023.  City Council updated at 

workshops (including September 11th). Public Open House was held on May 8th.  Plans were approved by 
Council on October 16, 2023.  Bids were opened on November 20, 2023.  Contract was awarded on February 5, 

2024.  Construction continues.  Contractor Payment #2 dated 03/25/2024 can be processed.          

 
2024 Sanburnol Drive NE, Elm Drive NE, and 83rd Avenue NE (193806347).  Sanburnol Drive 

(AKA 85th Ave. NE) is a shared road between Spring Lake Park and Blaine.  Spring Lake Park is the lead 
agency on this project, but it is a cooperative project between Blaine and Spring Lake Park.   
 

Construction Contracts have been delivered to North Valley Inc. for their review.  A preconstruction 
Conference will be held in April.  Materials Testing agreement can be approved.      

Declare Costs to be Assessed and Order Assessment 2/05/24.  √ 
Order Public Assessment Hearing   2/20/24.  √ 
Public Assessment Hearing (Adopt Assessment)  3/18/24.  √ 
Accept Bid (Award Contract)    3/18/24.  √       

 
2024 Seal Coat and Crack Repair Project (193806748).  Project includes maintenance on 
the streets in the area north of 81st Avenue and west of Terrace Street.  Bids were received 
on February 27th.  Project awarded on March 4th.  Construction Contracts have been sent to 
City Attorney for review (as of 3-25-24).        

 
Geographic Information System (GIS) and Mapping (193806747).  Staff has determined a 

process for implementing an online ArcGIS system to maintain public works documents and mapping 
of infrastructure.  Council authorized proceeding with and ArcGIS system on 10/16/23.  A project kick-
off meeting was held on January 18th.   Update meeting will be held in April.          

 
Take 5 Express Car Wash (8301 Univ. Ave. NE):   Revised site plans dated 8-24-22 include a 
sidewalk on 83rd Ave.  A site inspection needs to be completed in the spring.      

 
Please contact Phil Carlson, Bruce Paulson, Jeff Preston, or me if you have questions or require additional information. 



 
Memorandum 
To:   Mayor and City Council Members  

Cc:  Daniel Buchholtz, City Administrator  

From:  Wanda Brown, Deputy City Clerk  

Date:  March 28, 2024 

Subject:  City Hall Renovation/Expansion Project Update  

I wanted to provide a brief update on the City Hall renovation and expansion project: 
 

 Progress: The renovation and expansion project are proceeding according to schedule. 
Construction crews have dug, formed and poured footings for parts of phase one.  The crew 
has expanded the temporary wall in the City Hall entrance in order to begin demolition on 
Council Chamber B.   
 

 Timeline: Construction remains on track to completed by the projected deadline. Despite 
encountering some minor challenges along the way, the construction crew is working diligently 
to ensure that the renovation and expansion are completed efficiently and effectively. 

 
 Communication: Regular updates will continue to be shared with all staff members to keep 

everyone informed about the project's progress and any upcoming milestones. Please don't 
hesitate to reach out if you have any questions or concerns. 

 
Thank you for your ongoing cooperation and patience as we work to enhance our City Hall facilities.   
If you should have any questions please let us know. 
 


	Top
	A.	Approval of Minutes - March 18, 2024 City Council Work Session
	03.18.24 CC Work Session

	B.	Mayor's Proclamation - Administrative Professionals Day - April 24, 2024
	Administrative Professionals Day Proclamation 2024

	C.	Request for Contractor's Payment #2 - City Hall Renovation/Expansion Project - $340,152.25
	Buchholtz_BPP^PayApp2 trn_20240325

	D.	Public Right of Way Application - Comcast Cable
	Public Right of Way - Comcast Cable

	E.	Public Right of Way Application - Comcast Cable
	Public Right of Way - Comcast Cable - JB 1745000

	F.	Public Right of Way Application - Comcast Cable
	Public Righto of Way (3) - Comcast Cable

	G.	Contractor's Licenses
	Contractor's Licenses

	H.	Sign Permits
	Sign Permits

	A.	Rental License Revocation for Certain Property Located at 857 81st Avenue NE
	Resolution order for 857 81st Ave NE 03-27-2024

	A.	Public Works Report
	March Public Works Report_
	PW Pictures

	B.	Code Enforcement Report
	Code Enforcement Report March 2024

	A.	Ordinance 493, Amending Schedule of Permitted Uses
	CC - permitted use table amendment ordinance - 3.22.24
	ORDINANCE NO 493 - Update Land Use table

	B.	Resolution 2024-29, Authorizing Summary Publication of Ordinance 493
	24-29 - Summary Publication of Ordinance 493
	24-29 - Summary Publication of Ordinance 493

	C.	Resolution 2024-30, Approving CUP for an Auto Repair/Transportation Comapny at 970 Co. Hwy 10 NE
	Planning Cover Memorandum
	24-30 - Approving Conditional Use Permit for 970 County Hwy 10 NE
	Planning Memo
	03.25.24 Planning Minutes

	A.	Approval of Quality Assurance Testing Proposal - 2024 Street Improvement Project
	City_Stantec^2024-03-25_Materials-testing-proposal-for-2024_Street_project

	B.	July 5, 2024 City Hall Closure
	July Holiday Closure

	A.	Correspondence
	Correspondence Cover Page
	ACHS History 21
	Golden Valley Newsletter

	A.	Attorney Report
	B.	Engineer Report
	2024-04-01_Engineers_Report_for_SLP

	C.	Administrator Report
	City Hall Renovation-Expansion Project Update Memo

	Bottom

